Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Finanecial Services (India) Limited

Report on the Andit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services
(India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Staternent of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the finanecial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our andit in accordance with the Standards on Aunditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

. In preparing the financial statements, managernent is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve eollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related o
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company lo cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during our audit.

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required hy Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)
(b)
()

(d)
(e)

&)

(z)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinien, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2023, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on lopg-term centracts -
Refer Note 5 and 35.1. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31,
2023.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
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13. During

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer 38.A to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(Refer Note 38.B to the financial statements); and

{c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Aceounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which
provides for maintaining books of account in accounting software having a feature of
recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made
in books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that
the audit trail cannot be disabled, is applicable to the Company only with effect from
financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g} of Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable

the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company has not paid/pravided any managerial

remuneration under the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For PriceWaterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chaxtered Accountants

I

Russell T Par
Partner

Membership Number : 042190

UDIN: 23042190BGTAMAG6595

Mumbai

May 25, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HSBC
InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited (“the Company”™) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal finanecial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Iniernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”} issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrels with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted cur audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be preseribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an aundit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our aundit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate io provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to finaneial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
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detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finanecial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal {inancial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal finaneial contrals with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAT

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chyrtered Accountants

Russell T Pgofra
Partne
Membership Number: 042190

UDIN : 23042190BGTAMAG595
Mumbai
May 25, 2023
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i (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification, In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements arc duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note g
to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of
change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not
arise,

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated

on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any

(k)

iii.  (a)

inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii){a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limils in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or
statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not
arise,

The Company’s principal business is to give loans and it is registered with Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) under section 45-IA as a non-banking financial company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the

(e}

aforesaid loans, in our opinion, the terms and conditions under which such Ioans were granted
are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated by the Company. Considering that the Company is a non-banking financial
company engaged in the business of granting loans to customers for loans against shares, the
entity-wise details of the amount, due date for payment and extent of delay (that has been
suggested in the Guidance Note on CARQ 2020 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India for reporting under this clause) have not been reported because it is not
practicable to furnish such details owing to the voluminous nature of data generated in the
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v,

vi.

{d)
(c)

(d)

normal course of the Company’s business. Further, except for the instances where there are
delays or defaults in repayment of principal and/ or interest and in respect of which the
Company has recognised necessary provisions in accordance with the principles of Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS} and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI")
for Income Recognition and Asset Classification (which has been disclosed by the Company in
Note 39 to the financial statements), the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as
stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

In respect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for maore than ninety days.

The Company’s principal business is to give loans and it is registered with Reserve Bank of India
{RBI} under section 45-IA as a non-banking financial company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including
to promoters/related parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security in connection
with any loan taken by parties covered under section 185. Therefore, the provisions of section
185 are not applicable to the Company. The Company is registered as Non-Banking Financial
Company with the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186, except
subsection (1) of Section 186, of the Act are not applicable io the Company. Further, the
Company has not made any investment to the parties covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order in respect
of Section 186(1) is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under te the extent
notified. Further, the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 73 are not applicable to the
Company as it is 2 non-banking financial company registered with RBI, engaged in the business
of giving loans.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (2) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

viii.

(b)

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. [Also, refer
note 28 to the financial statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters
relating to provident fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {(a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

.{\
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ix. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a)

(b}

(c)

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given fo us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. (Also refer Note 14 to the
financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or assoeiate companies
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
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whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xai} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii, The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable Lo the Company.

xvi. {a) The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 as a Non Banking Financial Company ~ Invesiment and Credit Company (NBFC
-ICC).

{b) The Company has conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the Company
holds a valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Qrder is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group has one CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 37 to the financial statements. We
have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management
is accurate and complete.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 40 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payments of financial liabilities and other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us 1o believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audil report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
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however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporfing is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable.

xxi, The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Ch ed Accountants

MM

Russell I Parera
Partner
Membershifi Number 042190

UDIN: 23042190BGTAMAG595
Mumbai
May 25, 2023



HSBC investDirect Financial Services (india) Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

{All amounts in INR thousands

unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Fertictiars - Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,597 12,274
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 403,260 403,202
Loans 5 11,471,138 8,581,427
Investments 6 17,057 209,799
Other financial assets 7 7,148 7,148
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 8 154,430 143,181
Deferred tax assets {Net) 17 2,180 2,110
Proparty, plant and equipment 9 3,260 4,351
Intangible assets 10 2,016 3,527
Other non-financial assets 11 1,839 5,209
Total assets 12,065,925 9,372,228
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables 12

{1} Trade payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises i )
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 14,153 10,700
enterprises and smali enterprises
Debt securities 13 3,813,259 2,816,565
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 14 3,075,128 1,620,000
Other financial liabilities 15 671 856
Non-financial Liabilities
Provislons 16 3,263 2,077
Other non-financial liabilities 13 3,646 3,093
EQUITY
Equity share capital 19 1,462,847 1,452,847
Other equity 20 3,692,958 3,456,090
Total equity 5,155,805 4,918,937
[Total liabilities and eguity 12,065,925 9,372,228
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes, 2

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For PRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Firm Reglstration No: 012754N/N500016

N

Russell | Paj
Partner,
Membership No: 042190

’

Mumbai
May 25, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (Iindia} Limited

Vﬂwl’ W

Be;lip&arghese
Managing Director
[DIN 10059070}

Sunita Sarda
Chief Financial Officer
M.No. 128484

Mumbai

May 25, 2023

Roopa Varma

Chairperson
{DIN: 09779388)

S,

Sneha Doshi
Company Secretary
M.Nao, ACS 18001




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Allamounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Interest income 21{a) 804,265 416,123
Net gain on fair value changes 21({h} 13,444 17,304
Total revenue from operations 817,709 433,427
Other income 22 1,901 16,286
Total income 819,610 449,713
Expenses
Finance costs 23 388,454 121,878
Impairment on financial assets 24 289 261
Employee benefits expenses 25 55,401 44,112
Depreciation and amortisation 9&10 2,831 1,996
Others expenses 26 51,706 52,262
Total expenses 498,681 220,509
Profit before tax 320,929 229,204
Income tax expense:

- Current tax 27 82,970 55,000

- Deferred tax 27 259 594

- {Excess) provision for tax (145} (18,724}
Total tax expense 83,084 36,870
Profit for the year 237,845 192,334
Other comprehensive income
i} Itams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 29 (1305) (295)
- Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVOCI - 17,057
ii) Income tax reiating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 329 74
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year {976} 16,836
Total comprehensive income for the year 236,869 209,170
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of Rs. 10 per sharg)

- Basic and Diluted [Rs.) 1.63 1.31
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the 2

accompanying notes.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For PRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Firm Registration No: 012754N/N500016

NS

Russi Parera
Partner
Membership No: 042190

Mumbai
May 25, 2023

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

\

Berlin Varghese
Managing Director
(DIN 10059070}

Sunita Sarda

Chief Financial Officer
M.No, 128484
Mumbai

May 25, 2023

4

opa Varma

Chairperson
(DIN: 09779388)

{pd-4>

Sneha Doshi
Company Secretary
.No. ACS 18001



HS8C InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Statement of changes in equity as at March 31,2023
[Allamounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

1) For the year ended March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning | Changes in Equity | Restated balance | Changes in equity | Balance at

ofthe current reporting | Share Capital due [at the beginning of|  share capita!  [the end of the

petiod to prior period the current during the current|  current
errors reporting period year reporting
period
1,462,847 - - - 1,462,847

2) For the year ended March 31, 2022
Balance at the beglnning | Changes In Equity | Restated balance | Changes In equity | Balance at
of the current reporting | Share Capital due |at the beginning of|  share capital  |the end of the

perlod to prior period the current during the current current
errors reporting perlod year reporting
perlod
1,462,847 - - - 1,462,847

B. Other Equity
1) For the year ended March 31, 2023

Total T
Equity instruments
Securitles General Reserve | Statutory reserve Impairment Retained Earnings through Other
Premium reserve

Comprehensive Income ,
As at April 1, 2022 N 1,934,680 17,000 465,817 33471 988,065 17,057 3,456,05:
Total Income for the ]
current year - - - - 237,845 - 237,845 |
Remeasurements of post- ]
emplayment benefit ’
obligation, net of tax (976} - 1976)
Changes 1n Fair Value of |

Equity Instruments
through Cther |
Comprehensive Income - - - - - B ;

Ttansfer to Impaitment

reserve - - - 11,457 [11,457) - -
Transfer to Special |
Reserve under section 45- l
IC of the RBI Act - = 47,569 - {47,569) - -

As at March 31, 2023 1,934,680 17,000 513,386 44,928 1,165,908 17,057 3,552,95?:

2} For the year ended March 31, 2022

Total
Securities General Reserve | Statutory reserve Impairment Retained Earnings Equity Instruments I
Premium reserve through Other [
Comprehensive Income |
As at April 1, 2021 1,934,680 17,000 427,350 24,507 843,383 - 3,246,920 |
Total Income for the | [ [ [ |
current year - | - = - 192,334 - | 192,334 |
Remeasurements of post- [ [ | |
employment benefit | |
obligation, net of tax |
- - - - (221)| S (221)]
Changes in Fair Value of [ | : i
Equity Instruments | [
through Other = | |
|Comprehensive Income - | e & = | = _f 17,057 17,057
Transfer to Impairment I ,I
reserve R | - - 8,964 (8,964) | - =
Transfer to Special [ [
Reserve under section 45- [ | |
IC of the RBI Act - - 38,467 | - (38,467)| - -
[4s at March 31, 2022 1,934,680 17,000 465,817 | 33,471 | 928,065 | 17,057 3,456,090 |
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in canjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to In our report of even date,
For PRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Flrm Registration No: 012754N/N500016 HSBC InvestDirect Financtal Services (Indla) Limited
/U
v > oz
{
Berlin Varghese Roopa Varma
Managing Director Chairpersan
Membership No: 042150 {DIN 10053070} (CIN: 09779388)
Mumba) \‘}@ Q&%UG\'J
May 25, 2023 rd
Sunita Sarda Sneha Doshi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.No. 128484 M.No. ACS 18001

Murnbai
May 25, 2023



HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India} Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

[All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars - Naote Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit before tax; 320,929 229,204
Adjustments :
Depreciation and amortisation 98&10 2,831 1,996
Impairment on financial assets 24 289 261
Interest expense on borrowings 23 110,784 99,101
Interest paid on borrowings 23 (110,784) [99,101)
Interest expense on debt securities 23 261,924 19,860
Liability no fonger required written back 15 - (16,173}
Interest income on bank deposits 21({a) (20,214) (19,278)
Unrealised gain on mutual fund 21(h) - {144)
Realised gain on mutual fund 21{b} {13,444} {17,160)
Interest income on income tax refund 22 (1,886} -
Operating profit before working capital changes 550,429 158,566
Adjustments for working capital changes:
Becrease in bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 - 511
{Increase} in loans 5 (2,890,000 {2.514,632)
Decrease in other financial assets 7 - 7,565
{Increase)/decrease in other non financial assets 11 3,370 {1,757}
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables i2 3,453 (763)
increasef{decrease) in other financial habilities 15 {185) [8,782)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 16 {119) 9i7
Increase in other non firancial liabilities 18 553 486
Cash generated from operations (2,882,92le (2.615,455)
Less : Income taxes paid [net of refunds) | (92,188)| '42,341}|
|Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities (2,424,687) (2,460,230_)_'
il:ASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ; T [
| Placement of fixed deposit with bank 4 [ {370,000 (138,400)
| Proceeds from fixed deposit with bank a 370,000 | 140,000 |
| Interest income on bank deposits 21{a) &4 | 20,156 15,278 |
| Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2&10 (231) {2,909)
Investment in mutual fund B {11,215,000) (7,102,500)|
|> Redemption of mutual fund 6 | 11,421,186 | 7,037,141
{Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 226,111 | (47,390)]
|CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : | | i,
[ Proceeds from borrowings 14 2,980,000 | - i
Repayment of borrowings 14 | {1,700,000)| -
| Praceeds from issue of debt securities 13 | 13,284,771 3,199,265
Repayment of debt securities | 13 | (12,550,000)| i550.000}|
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities | | 2,014,771 | 2,549,265 |
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [ [ (183,805)| 41,645
| Add : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year | 12,274 (29,371)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year - L= (171,531)] 12,274 |
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
Particulars -l Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,597 12,274
Bank overdrafts 14 (175,128) -
Balances as per st of cash flows (171,531} 12,274

Note:

i) Amount spent in cash towards Corporate Sccial Respensibility is INR 5,420 {March 2022: 6,122)

ii) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. Refer note 14.

| Particulars I Asat | As at |I
| March31,2023 | March31,2022 |
Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts | (171,531)] 13,274 |
|Liquid investments - | 192,742 |
|Debt securities - commercial paper (3,813,259) {2,816,565)

Borrowings - loans from related parties | (2,900,000)| (1,620,000)

[Net debt - | (6,884,790) (4,231,549)|

The above statement of cash flows should be read in cenjunction with the accompanying notes,

The above statement of cash flows has been

prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statemeant of Cash Flows.

This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date,

For PRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Firm Registration No: 0127/54N/N500016

;,J\U\}\

Russell L“/

Partner
Membership No: 042190

Mumbai
May 25, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Li 5]

’(‘ﬂ“/‘/
/

y

Berlin Varghese Roopa Varma
Managing Director Additional Director
{BIN 10059070) {DIN: D9779388)

‘ Lo Dess

Chief Financial Cfficer
M.No. 128484

Sneha Doshi
Company Secretary
M.No. ACS 18001

Mumbai
May 25, 2023



HSBC vestDlirect Financlal Services {india) Umited
Notes to financtal statements for the year ended March 31,2023

1 Background

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited (‘HIFSL or the Company’] is registered as a Non Banking Finaneial Company ('NBFC’) {nen-deposit accepting) as defined under section
43+1A of the Reserve Bank of India ['RBI’) Act, 1934. The Company is a whelly ewned subsidiary of HSBC InvestDirect {India} Private Limited.

The Company is domiciled in tndia and primarily engaged in the business of financing against securities including equity shares, bonds, mutual funds, sovereign bonds, Treasury bills and
Government Securities, As per RBI circular dated February 22, 201% on Harmonisation of different categories of NBFCs, the Company is classifed as an Investment and Credit Campany
{NBFC-ICC).

As per Scale Based Regulations (SBR) issued by RBI an Octoker 22, 2021, the Company is now categorized as Middle Layer as the asset size of the Company has crossed INR 10,000
million during the current year.

2A Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated,

1) Basis of preparation
Complfance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspacts with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015], other relevant pravisions of the Act and guidelines along with circulars issued by the RBI from time to time.

Historfcal cost conventlon

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
¢ certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and

» defined benefit plans - plan assets are measured at fair value.

Recent Accounting Pronauncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which zmends certain
accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.

lnd AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - The amendments require companies to disclose thetr material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting poficies.
Accounting poliey informatton, together with other informat on, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial
statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 {recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial racognitian,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financiai statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates & Errars —The amendments will help entities to distinguish hetween accounting policies and accounting estimates. The
definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject ta measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting palicies require iters in financial statements to be measured in
a way that invalves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Presentation

The Company s covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company as defined in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) {Amendment} Rules, 2016. The Company presents
its financial statements in accordance with Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. A maturity anaiysis of recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities within 12 months
after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the repotting date is presented in Note 33,

il} Segment reporting
The Company's Chief Operating Decisions Maker {CODM), who has the ability to evaluate performance and allocates resgurces, is the Managing Director [MD). In a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the MD for corporate planning, there are no separate reportable segments (including geographical segiments) ather than single business
segment of firancing.

il) Property, plant and equipment
Freehold fand is carried at historical cost, [tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that Is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items,
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apprapriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assacrated with
the izem will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and maintenance are charged to prafit and loss during the reporting pericd in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful Jives and residual value
Depreciation on the following assets has baen based on the management’s estimate of useful life/ remaining usefu! life. The residual values are not mare than 5% of the original cost of
the asset. -

[a) Assets costing INR 35000 or less are depreciated at 100% i the year of capitalisation.
{b) Useful life of other assets is estimated as under:

FY 2022-23 i
Category of assets Useful lives followed by Company | Useful lives prescribed in Schedule |
| (years) Il (years)
Office Equipments 5 1 5
|Data Processing Equipments - Laptop | 4 | 3
[Eta Processing Equipments — Servers | 5 | 6

The assets’ residual vatues and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverakle ameunt if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverahle amount.Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/{losses).




HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Services {India) Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [Contd.)

Iv) Intangible assets:
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Intangible assets are amartised on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial vear end. If the expected useful life of the asset is Significantly
different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or [9sses arising from the retirement or disposal of intangible assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Amortisation methads and perlods
The Company amortises inta ngible assets using the straight-line method over the following periods:

| Category of assets Useful lives followed by Company ]
! —y (years)
| Computer Softwares 3 years or license life

v) Investments & other finandial assets
{a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categaries:
1. those to he measured subsequently at fair value {either through other comprehensive income, or thraugh profit or loss), and
Z. those to be measured at amortised cost,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in prefit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Far investments in debt instruments, this wilt depend on the classification of debt instruments depending on:
(t) the Company's business model for managing the asset; and
{ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset {Solely payments of principal and interest),

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages greups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-hy-instrument basis, but at a higher leve] of aggregated portfolios and is based on observakle factors such as:
* how the asset’s performance and the business madel is evaluated and reperted to key management personnet

* the risks that affect the performance of the business model and how these risks are assessed and managed

payments of principal and interest {the 'SPPI test'), In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic Jending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to zisk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit and foss.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes,

(b} Recognition
Regular way of purchase and sales f financial assets are recognised on trade date the date on which the Company commits purchase ar sale of financial asset.

{c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributahle to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through prefit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Financial assets

Debtinstruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies Its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
orfoss and presented in other gains/{losses}. Impairment losses are presented a5 separate fine item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value threugh other comprehensive income {FVOCH); Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows or for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FYOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and luss. When the financiat asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/{losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective imterest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses} and impairment expenses are presented as separate fine item in statement of
profit and loss,

Fair value through prafit or loss {FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through prefit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair valug through profit or loss is Tecognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in profit and loss,

cre
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HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Sarvices {India} Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [Contd.)

Equity Instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value, Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value £8ins and losses on equity investtents in
ather comprehensive income, there is no subsequent rectassification of fair value EaIns and losses to profit or loss fellowing the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in profit or lass as other inceme when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ {losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses {and reversal
efimpairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Financial liabllitles and equity instrument

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabifities ar as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financiai liability and an equity instrument

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabifities, Equity instruments issued by the Company is
recoghised at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financlal liahilltles
Financial Rabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are determined based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
de-recognition of financial liabilities is also recognised in profit or loss. Undrawn foan commitments are not recorded in the balance sheet,

{d) Impalrment of financlal assets

The Company assesses on a forward laoking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FYOCT debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 35 details haw the Company determines whether there has been a significant
Increase in credit risk,

(e) Derecognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised onty when

1. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assetor

2. retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or mare recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially alt risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the finaneial asset, the financial asset is not derecagnised,

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has net retained contral of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of centinuing
involvement it the financial asset,

Financial Nabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liahility. In this case, a rew financial liahility based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference betwaen the carrying value of
the onginal financial liability and the new financtal liability with modified terms is recognised in profitand loss,

{f} Income recognition

Interest Income

Interest income frotn financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income under revenue from operations. interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost and financial assets at FYOCT is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement cf profit and loss under revenue from cperations.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effactive interest rate to the Eross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financizal assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrylng amount of the financial asset {after deduction of the loss allowance),

vi} Employee Benefits:
[a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities far salarfes, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 22 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the reiated
service are recognised in respect of employeas’ servicas up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled, The
liabilities are presented as employee benefit cbligations in the balance sheet,

(b} Post employement obligations

The Company operates the following post-employrent schemes:
+ defined benefit plans such as gratuity and

+ defined contribution plans such as provident fund.




HSBC InvestDIrect Financlal Services {India) Lirmlted
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [Contd.)

(1) Defined benefiz plans {Gratuity)

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The preseni value of the defined benefit cbligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating ta the terms of the related obligation.

The netinterest cost is calcylated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, This cast is included in employee
benefit expense in the Staternent of Profit and Loss,

{t} Bonus
The Company recognises a provision where it is contractually obliged or where there iz a past practice that has created a constructive ohligation.

v} Income Tax:
The incame tax expense for the penod is the tax payable an the current period’s taxable income based on the applicahle income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributahle to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
The current income tax charge is cakculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken In tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation s subfect to
interpretation, It establishes pravisions where approptiate an the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authgrities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liabllity method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their CAITYing amounts (n the
financial statements, However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or lizbility in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws} that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liahility is settled,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temperary differences and unused tax losses only if it is prebable that future taxable amounts will be availasle to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset when there is a legally enforeeable right to offset current tax assels and labilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation zuthority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except te the extent that it relates to items recognised in other cemprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

vlii} Cash and cash equivalents:
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within horrowings in financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

ix} Special Reserve:
In accardance with section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company creates a reserve fund and transfers therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit before any dividend
is declared every year end, and is disclosed in the other equity.

x} Provisions and Contingent Wabilitles:
Provistons
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present |lagal of constructive ohligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resaurces will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future cperating losses,
Where there are a number of similar ohligations, the likellhood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of okligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may he small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of ma nagement’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense,

Contingent Liabllittes

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a pessible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed anly by the accurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not whelly within the contra! of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either nat probable that an cutfiow of
resources will he required to settle of reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed and disclosed as contingent liabdlity.

e




HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Services (India} Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.}

xi) Leases -as a lessee

Assets and liabilities ansing from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:
» fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

* variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

* amaunts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

* the exercise price of a purchase aptian if the Company is reasanably certain to exercise that cption, and

* payments of penalties for terminating the leass, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option

Lease payments to be made under reasanably certain extension options are alsa included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the
's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of.
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee a5 a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost, The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period 50 as to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest
od the remaining balance of the liabifity for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

* the amount of the initial measurement of lease Lability

* any lease payments made at or before the cornmencement date less any lease incentives received
* any initiel direct costs, and

* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the sharter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase aption, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-velue assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and srall items of office furniture.

«lij Earnings per share
{a) Basic earnings per share
Bastc earnings per share is catculated by dividing:
1. the profit attributable to owners of the Company
2. by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

{b} Dlluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

1. the after incomne tax effect of interest and cther financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

2. the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all difutive potential equity shares.

I} Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and trade and other
Payables are presented as financial Labifities,

«lv) Impairment of assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful iife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events ar changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not he recaverable,
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
casts of disposal and value in use. For the burposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which arg
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

uv) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrawings using the effective interest methad. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as-transaction costs of the foan to the extent that itis probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
Borrowings are dereognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelted or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or [oss as other gains/{losses).

xvl) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclesed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule IIE, unless otherwise stated.

2B Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements Tequires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Company’s accounting poflicies,
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
infermation about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements,

The areas involving critical estimates of Judgements are:

- Estimation of current tax asset {Refer Note 8 )

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation {Refer Note 29)

- Estimation of expected credit losses (Refer Note 35)

- Fair value of unquoted Investrents {Refer Note 6)

- Estimation of provision for expense and levies (Refer Note 12)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023 {Contd.)

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
3 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars fSIag As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks in current account 3,597 12,274
Depaosits with maturity less than 3 months - -
Total 3,597 12,274

4 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less 403,260 403,202
than 12 months {held as lien against overdraft from
bank)*#
Total 403,260 403,202

* Includes accrued Interest on deposit with bank for March 31, 2023: 3,260 ; March 31, 2022: 3,202
# Includes deposits which are held as lien against bank overdraft. As at March 31, 2023; Rs. 400,000; As at March 31,
2022: Rs, 400,000.

5 Loans {measured at amortised cost)

Particulars - ASSE
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loans against securities* 11,472,285 8,582,285
Total (A) - Gross 11,472,285 8,582,285
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (1,147) {858)
Total (A) - Net 11,471,138 8,581,427
Secured by tangible assets (by way of pledge over securities) 11,472,285 8,582,285
Total (B) - Gross 11,472,285 8,582,285
{Less): Impairment loss allowance {1,147) (858)
Total (B) - Net 11,471,138 8,581,427
Loans in India

- Public sector - -

- Others 11,472,285 8,582,285
Total (C) - Gross 11,472,285 8,582,285
[Less): Impairment ioss allowance {1,147) {858)
Total {C} - Net 11,471,138 8,581,427

* Includes Interest accrued but not due for March 31, 2023: 74,987 ; March 31, 2022: 34,181
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{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
6 Investments

Particulars Fair vaiue through profit | Fair value thr'oug‘h other Total
& loss comprehensive income

As at March 31, 2022

Mutual Fund - 192,742 - 192,742
HSBC InvestDirect Securities {India) Private Limited - 17,057 17,057
Total (A) - Gross 192,742 17,057 209,799
Investments outside India - - -
Investments in India 192,742 17,057 209,799
Total (B) - Gross 192,742 17,057 209,799
Total - Gross 192,742 - 192,742
Fair value changes - 17,057 17,057
Total 192,742 17,057 209,799
As at March 31, 2023

Mutual Fund . - -
HSBC InvestDirect Securities (India) Private Limited™* - 17,057 17,057
Total (A) - Gross - 17,057 17,057
Investments outside India - = .
Investments in India - 17,057 17,057
Total (B) - Gross - 17,057 17,057
Total - Gross - 17,057 17,057
Fair value changes - - .
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (C) - - =
Total - 17,057 17,057

The Company has measured its investment in HSBC InvestDirect Securities {India) Private Limited at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

*
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(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated}
7 Other financial assets

Particulars . As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security deposits 6,998 6,998
Margin and other deposits 150 150
Total 7,148 7,148
8 Current tax assets {Net)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance tax and tax deducted at source 154,430 143,181
{net of provision for tax 578,379; March 31 2022 458,109)
Total 154,430 143,181
9 Property, plant and equipment
Own Assets
Particulars Land# s pr_o cefsmg Office Equipments Total
machineries
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 378 8,205 726 5,309
Additions - 1,739 37 1,776
Disposals and transfers - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 378 9,944 763 11,085
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 5,401 344 5,745
Depreciation charge during the year - 885 104 985
Disposals and transfers - - - -
Clasing accumulated depreciation - 6,286 448 6,734
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 378 3,658 315 4,351
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 378 9,944 763 11,085
Additions - 231 - 231
Disposals and transfers - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 378 10,175 763 11,316
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 6,287 448 6,735
Depreciation charge during the year - 1,216 105 1,321
Disposals and transfers - - - g
Closing accumulated depreciation - 7,503 553 8,056
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 378 2,672 210 3,260

#The Company has a land at Vadgaon Pune, Maharashtra which is held in the erstwhile name t.e., Tajir Investments and Properties Ltd.
[now known as HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited]
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(Al amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
10 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer softwares

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 1,233
Additions 4,534
Disposals and transfers -

Closing grass carrying amount 5,767

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 1,233
Amortisation during the period 1,007
Disposals and transfers -

Closing accumulated amortisation 2,240
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 31,527

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross cairying amount 5,767
Additions h -
Disposals and transfers -
Closing gross carrying amount 5,767

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 2,240
Amortisation during the period 1,511
Disposals and transfers -

Closing accumulated amortisation 3,751
Net carrying amount as at Mar 31, 2023 2,016

Intangible assets under development
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 3,400
Additions =
Disposals and transfers (3,400)

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31,2022 -

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount -
Additions -
Disposals and transfers -
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 -

Intangible assets under development/ CWIP aging schedule
There are no intangible assets under development/CWIP as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022.

11 Other non-financial assets

As at As at
R ticuars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Prepayments 1,783 5,090
Amount receivable from Gratuity Trust Fund - 81
Others 56 38
Total 1,839 5,209
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{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

12 Trade payables

As at Asat
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises ) B
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 14,153 10,700
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 14,153 10,700

The below information as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information received from suppliers
regarding their status under the said Act as available with the Company.

Particulars

As at
March 31,
2023

As at
March 31,
2022

Outstanding principal amount and interest due to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid at the year
end:

- Principal amount

- Interest due thereon

Interest paid other than under section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under MSMED Act, beyond the appainted day
during the period.

Interest paid under section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during

the period. .
Amount of the payment made to suppliers registered under

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period,
Ampount of interest due and payable {where the principal has
already been paid but interest has not been paid).

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable evenin
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
MSMED Act.

Trade Payables aging schedule

Particulars

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 |1-2 years 2-3 years | More than |Total
year i3 years

(i) MSME - - - - -
(i} Others 14,153 - - B 14,153
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others . - - - -
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
As at March 31, 2022 Less than 1 |1-2 years 2-3 years More than |Total

- year 3 years
(i) MSME - s - - -
(i) Others 10,700 = - - 10,700
{ii} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - -

. C narte
{Lp’n?_
Chartes
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13

14

14.1
14.2
14.3
14.4

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless atherwise stated)

Debt securities

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

At amortised cost

Unsecured:

- Commercial paper 3,813,259 2,816,565
Total (A) 3,813,259 2,816,565
Debt securities in India 3,813,259 2,816,565
Dabt securities outside India - -
Total (B) 3,813,259 2,816,565
Terms of repayment schedule of debt securities:-

instrument with Maturity Dat ieMar-23
repayment terms aturity Date Interest Rate Carrying Face Value
{% p.a.} amount
Commerciail paper
Repayable at Maturity Less than 3 months 7.57% to 8.25% 3,813,259 3,850,000
Instrument with Maturity Dat 31—M.ar-22
repayment terms y Date Interest Rate Carrying Face Value
. (% p.a.) amount
Commercial paper
Repayable at Maturity upto 6 months 4.,6% to 5.50% 2,816,565 2,850,000
During the year, there were no defaults in the repayment of principal or interest.
Borrgwings (other than debt securities)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cost
Secured
Overdraft from Bank# 175,128 -
Unsecured
Bank Borrowings 1,050,000 -
Interest rate was 5.50% p.a. to 8.85%p.a. for FY 2022-23 {5.60% p.a. for FY 2021-22)
Loans from related parties
Loan from the holding Company § 1,850,000 1,620,000
interest rate was 5.78% p.a. to 7.73% p.a. for FY 2022-23 {5.67% p.a. to 7.13% p.a. for
FY 2021-22)
Total (A) 3,075,128 1,620,000
Borrrowings in India 3,075,128 1,620,000
Borrrowings outside India - -
Total (B) 3,075,128 1,620,000

# Fully secured against fixed deposit [note 4)

$ The tenor of the loan is 36 months from the date of respective disbursement with builet repayment on maturity or at the option of the borrower.

This loan is further extended for an additional pericd of 36 months w.e.f from February 24, 2023,

During the year, there were no defaults in the repayment of principal or interest.
The Company has used the borrowings from bank or financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken,
The Company has not bean declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions.
There are no breach in covenants raised against the loans.

1t
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14  Borrowings (other than debt securities) {Contd.) (All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

14.5 Registration of tharges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
During the FY 2022-2023, the Company had filed for satisfaction of four charges against the Company with a delay. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA} has condone the delay in satisfaction of the said charges with a payment of INR 1,15,000 for each charge, amounting to INR 4,60,000. The
Company has filed the Order of condonation with the MCA for the said satisfaction, however due to migration of MCA portal from version 2 to
version 3, the satisfaction status of charges is awaited to be reflected on the portal.

14.6 Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Particulars Asat ASIgs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts {171,531} 12,274
Liquid investments - 192,742
Debt securities - commercial paper {3,813,259) (2,816,565}
Borrowings {2,900,000) {1,620,000)
Net debt {6,884,790) (4,231,549)
Cash'and cash e Debt securities - .
Particulars equivalents, | Liquid investments . Borrowings
commercial paper
overdraft

Net debt as at April 1, 2021 (29,371) 110,080 (247,439) {1,620,000)
Cash flows movement {net) 41,645 82,662 {2,549,266) -
Interest expense {1,175} - (19,860} (99,101}
Interest paid 1,175 - - 99,101
Other non-cash movements

- Fair value adjustments - - - -

- Unamortised discount B = - B

- Acquisitions/disposals - - - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2022 12,274 192,742 (2,816,565) (1,620,000)
Cash flows movement (net) {183,805) {192,742) {734,771} (1,280,000)
Interest expense (11,543) - {261,924) {110,784}
Interest paid 11,543 - - 110,784
Other non-cash movements

- Fair value adjustments - - - -

- Unamortised discount - - -

- Acquisitions/disposals - - = -
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 (171,531) - (3,813,259) (2,900,000}]

15 Other financial liabilities
As at As at
I March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Employee henefits payable 671 856
Total 671 856
_{_/fch:\rteredjﬁ.c\\
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16

17

18

Provisions
Particulars ok Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefits
-Leave obligation 808 723
-Gratuity (Refer Note 29) 2,455 1,354
Provision for property tax* - =
Total 3,263 2,077
* The movement in provision for property tax is as follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance - 16,173
Additions during the year - -
Amounts used - -
Unused amounts reversed - 16,173
Closing balance - -
Deferred tax assets {Net)
As at As at
Rarticulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment/ Intangible asset 890 1,170
Expenses allowable on payment basis as per section 43B of Income
Tax Act, 1961 1,000 760
Impairment allowance for loans 290 220
Unrealised gain on mutual fund - (40}
Net deferred tax asset 2,180 2,110
Other non-financial liabilities
. As at As at
Ramticulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Statutory dues payable including providend fund and 3,646 3,003
tax deducted at source
Total 3,646 3,093
(AN
, .
1
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{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
19 Equity share capital

As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of Number of
shares Rs. shares Rs.
Authorised shares
|Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 147,000,000 1,470,000 147,000,000 1,470,000
Issued, subscribed & fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847
Total 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847

a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year,

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of Number of
shares Rs. shares Rs.
OQutstanding at the beginning of the year 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847

b} Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are

eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

¢) Shares of the Company held by the holding Company

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity shareholders Number of Number of
shares % holding shares % holding
HSBC InvestDirect (India) Private Limited, the 146,284,720 100 146,284,720 100
holding Company & its joint hoiders

d) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

As at As at
N March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity shareholders Number of Number of
shares % holding shares % holding
HSBC InvestDirect {india) Private Limited, the 146,284,720 100 146,284,720 100
holding Company & its joint holders |

e) Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023 % Change
during the year

Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares
HSBC InvestDirect (India} Private Limited, the 146,284,720 100 -
holding Company & its joint holders
Total 146,284,720 100 -
Shares held by promoters as at March 32, 2022 [ e Change

| during the year

Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares |
HSBC InvestDirect {India) Private Limited, the 146,284,720 100 | -
holding Company & its joint holders |
Total 146,284,720 100 | =

For the Company's capital management policy, refer Note 32
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20 Other equity (All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated}
A Reserves and surplus
Particulats et Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Securities premium
Opening balance 1,934,680 1,934,680
Add : changes during the year - -
Closing halance 1,934,680 1,934,680
General reserve
Opening balance 17,000 17,000
Add : changes during the year - o
Closing balance 17,000 17,000
Statutory reserve
Opening balance 465,817 427,350
Add : transfer during the year 47,569 38,467
Closing balance 513,386 465,817
'Impairment reserve
Opening balance 33,471 24,507
Add : transfer during the year 11,457 8,964
Closing balance 44,928 33,471 |
Retained earnings
Opening balance 988,065 843,383
Add : changes during the year 237,845 192,334
Less) : appropriation in special reserve (47,569) [38,467)
(Less) ! appropriation in impairment reserve {11,457) [8,964)
Items of other comgrehensive income recognised directly in retoined earnings
|(Less) : remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax (977) (221)
|Closing balance 1,165,907 988,065 |
Total Reserves and surplus 3,675,901 3,439,033 |
B Other reserves
Particulars ASin, pial
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance 17,057 -
Add: changes during the year . 17,057
Transfer of gain to Retained Earnings | | -
Total other reserves | 17,057 | 17,057
|Totat other equity | 3,692,958 | 3,456,090 |

Nature and purpose of other equity

a) Securities premium
Securities premium is wsed to recard the premium on issue of shares. This is to be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act,2013.

b) Statutory reserve
Special reserve represents appropriation of retained earning as per Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. No
appropriation of any sum from the statutory reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the purpose as may be spacified by
the RBI from time to time.

¢} General reserve
The general reserve is created by transfer from retained earnings as per the provision of the Companies Act. It can be used in
accordance with the provistons of the Companies Act.

d) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are avallable far distribution to shareholders.

e) impalrment reserve
As per circular number RBI/2019-20/170 dated March 13, 2020, an Impairment Reserve is created when impairment allowance under
Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP [including standard asset provisioning), the Company shall appropriate
the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate Impairment Reserve. As per the circular, the balance in the
Impairment Reserve shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital.

f) FVOCI equity investments
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in efuity securities in other comprehensive
income. Thaese changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within éqmw, The Company t_ransfers amaunts
from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

L
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21(a)

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income

Particulars

Mar 31, 2023

Mar 31, 2022

On financial assets measured at Amortised costs:

2i(b}

Interest on [oans 784,051 396,845

Interest on deposits with banks 20,214 19,278
Total 804,265 416,123
Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Others

13,444 17,304

Net Gain on financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss
Total (A) 13,444 17,304
Fair Value changes:
Realised 13,444 17,160
Unrealised - 144
Total (B) 13,444 17,304

22

Other income

Particulars

Mar 31, 2023

Mar 31, 2022

Interest on income tax refund 1,886 -
Miscellaneous income i5 113
Liability no longer required written back - 16,173
Total 1,901 16,286
23 Finance costs
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Bank overdraft 11,543 1,175
Inter corporate deposits 110,784 99,101
Commercial Papers 261,924 15,860
Other Borrowing Costs 4,203 1,742
Total 388,454 121,878
24 Impairment on financial instruments
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
On financial instruments measured at Amortised cost:
Loans 289 261
Total 289 261
25 Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

Mar 31, 2023

Mar 31, 2022

Salaries and wages 49,815 39,556
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 29) 2,277 1,845
Gratuity (Refer note 29) 1,150 1,059
Staff welfare expenses 2,159 1,652
Total 55,401 44,112
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26 Other expenses

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Rent [Refer Note (¢) below] 10,196 12,301
Rates and taxes 841 877
Repairs and maintenance

- Others 8,044 6,305
Insurance charges 1,845 807
Communication costs 587 406
Professional fees 12,322 11,454
Directors'sitting fees - 575
Stamping and Franking Charges 737 4,212
Membership and Subscription 1,147 504
Storage Charges 3,605 3,383
Contribution for corporate social responsibility 5,420 6,122
{CSR) [Refer Note (b) below]
Auditors' remuneration {Refer Note (a) below] 4,695 4,287
|Miscellaneous expenses 2,267 629
Total 51,706 52,262

a) Breakup of Auditors' remuneration

Particulars Mar 21, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Audit fees 3,017 2,900
Other services 1,500 1,000
Certification 140 380
Out-of-pocket expenses 38 7
Total 4,695 4,287

b)

Contribution for corporate social responsihility {CSR)
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 5,420 6,122
Amount spent during the year on;
(i} Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
{il) On purposes other than {i) above 5,420 6,122
Total 5,420 6,122
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022

{a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred

(c) Shortfall at the end of the year

(d) Total of previous years shortfall

(e) Reason for shortfall

(f) Nature of CSR_activities

(g) Details of related party transactions

(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the

provision during the year shall be shown separately.

5,420

5,420
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Refer S below
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

6,122

6,122
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Refer # below
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

$ Solar energy-based solution at BEST Bus Depot at Bandra (West}, Mumbai and ‘The National Association for

the Blind (NAB) India’

# Administering COVID-19 vaccine through mobile vaccination units/vans, to the geographically difficult to
access communities, socially and economically disadvantaged population. The activities are related to COVID
19 relief and recovery under item no. (i} and {xi) of Schedule VIl ~ Covid-19 relief recovery relating to
promotion of health care, including preventive health care; and Disaster management including relief

activities.

X
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26 Other expenses (Contd.)

c) Short - term lease disclosures
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease
payment associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
The Company incurred INR 10,196 (INR 12,301 for FY 21-22) for the year ended March 31, 2023 towards
expense relating to short-term lease.
Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for office space taken on lease to conduct its
business in the ordinary coursa by using the existing infrastructure and utilities provided in the building. The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitments towards variable rent as per the centract.

d} Struck - off companies
The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,
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27 Income tax expenses

a) The components of income tax expense for the period ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022

Current tax 82,970 55,000
Deferred tax 259 584
(Excess} pravision for tax {145) (18,724)
Sub-total 83,084 36,870
Deferred tax - Other comprehensive income (329) {74)
Total 82,755 36,796

b} Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if alt profits had been charged at India corporate
tax rate. A reconcilistion between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indfa’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31 2023
and March 31, 2022 is, as follows:

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Accounting profit before tax 320,929 225,204
Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (previous year 25.17%) 80,778 57,691
Tax effect of the amount which are not taxable in calculating taxable income :

- Expenses disallowed 1,480 1,541
- income not subject to tax - {4,071}
- {Excess) provision for tax of earlier years {145) (18,724)
- Other 972 433
Income tax expense at effective tax rate 83,085 36,870
Effective tax rate 25.89% 16.09%

c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities
The balznce comprises temporary differences attributable to the below items and corresponding movement in deferred tax liabilities / assets:

Particulars As at {Charged}/ credited to {Charged)/ credited As at
March 31, 2022 profit and loss to OCI March 31, 2023

Deferred tax asset ;
Property, plant and equipment/ Intangible asset 1,170 {280) - 890
Expenses allowable on payment basis as per section
438 of Income Tax Act, 1961 760 240 - 1,000
Impairment alfowance for financial assets 220 70 - 290
Unrealised gain an mutual fund {40) 40 - -
Net deferred tax asset 2,110 70 - 2,180

R (Charged)/ credited to| {Charged)/ credited As at
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 profit and loss to OCl March 31, 2022
Deferred tax asset :
Property, plant and equipment/ Intangible asset 2,120 {950} - 1,170
Expenses ailowable on payment basis as per section 760
438 of Income Tax Act, 1961 350 410 -
Impairment allowance for [oans 160 60 = 220
Unrealised gain on mutual fund - {40) - {40}
Net deferred tax asset/ {liability) 2,630 (520) - 2,110 |

28 Contingent fiabilities and commitments {to the extent not provided for)
Provident Fund
The Honourable Supreme Court has recently provided a judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner {Il} West Bengal” and the related circular {Circular No. C-1/1{33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284} dated March 20, 2019 issued by the
Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to nan-exclysion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees
far the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1952. In the
assessment of the Management, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact.




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)

29 Employee benefit obligations

a} Defined contribution plans

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless gtherwise stated)

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to defined contribution plans

which are included under contribution to provident and other funds:

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Provident fund 2,165 1,758
Dthers 111 27

b) Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit plan for post-employment benefits in the form of Gratuity. The Company contributes to the "Gratuity
Trust". Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to thirty days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is
payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after four years and ane

hundred ninety days of continuous service.

The following tables summarise the componenis of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status

and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

i} Balance Sheet

Present value of | Fair value of plan
S Net amount
obligation assets
As at April 1, 2021 9,686 9,374 312
Current service cost 1,049 - 1,049
Interest exgense/{income) 526 516 10
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 1,575 516 1,059
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/income u (434) 434
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (281) - (281)|
Actuarial loss f {gain) arising on account of experience changes 142 - 142
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {139) (434) 295 |
Employer contributions - 312 (3 12||
Benefit payments (2,396) (2,396) -
As at March 31, 2022 8,726 7,372 1,354
Current service cost 1,105 N 1,105
Interest expensef{income) 539 495 44
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 1,644 495 1,149
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/income - 131 {131)
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from change in financial assumptions {133) - {133}
Actuarial loss f {gain) arising on account of experience changes 1,570 - 1,570
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 1,437 131 1,306
Employer contributions - 1,354 {1,354
Benefit payments (1,367) (1,367) -
As at March 31, 2023 10,440 | 7,985 2,455
Particulars ~ Asat e
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of plan liabilities | 10,440 8,726
Fair value of plan assets | 7,985 7,373
Plan liability net of plan assets 1 2,455 1,353
it} Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Employee Benefit Expenses:
Current service cost 1,105 1,049
Total 1,105 1,049
Finance cost 44 10
Net impact on the profit before tax 1,129 1,059
Rermeasurerment of the net defined benefit iability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/income {131) 434
Acturial {gain) arising from change in financial assumptions {133) (281}
| Acturial loss arising on account of experience changes 1570 142
[Net impact on the other comprehensive income before tax 1306 295
iii} Defined benefit plans assets
As at As at
Category of assets (% allocation) March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
- Insurer Managed Fund (HDFC Group Unit link plan - Option B) 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
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29 Employee benefit obligations {Contd.}

{AHl amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated}
iv) Actuarial assumptions
With the objective of presenting the plan assets and pfan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the hatance sheet,
assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.1% 6.7%
Salary escalatign rate* 7.0% 7.0%

* takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors

v} Demographic assumptions

Particulars oot St
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Maurtality rate Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Indian Assuregd
(2006-08) Lives Mortality
Ultimate| {2006-08) Ultimate
Withdrawal rate 10% 10%
vi) Sensitivity
Changein
assumg tion Impact on defined benefit obligation
As at March 31, 2023 Inma':e o
Decrease by Increase/ (Decrease)
Discount rate 0.5% {291) 305
Salary escalation rate 0.5% 305 [293)
Withdrawal Rate 0.5% {26) 26
Change in
assumg tion Impact on defined benefit obligation
As at March 31,2022 Increa:e o
Decrease by increase/ (Decrease)
Discount rate 0.5% (267) 281
Salary escafation rate 0.5% 280 (268)
Withdrawal Rate 0.5% [86) 106

Ihe above sensitivity analyses are Based on a change in an assumption whtle holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this Is
unlikely to ocour, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
abligation to significamt actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

vii) Maturity (undiscounted)
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:

. Asat As at
farctiors March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
1st Following Year 1,131 891
2nd Following Year 1,179 998
3rd Fallowing Year 1,541 1,097
4th Folfowing Year 1,221 1,421
Sth Following Year 1,589 1,155
Sum of 610 10 10,924 9,739

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years {previous year - 7 years)

viii) Risk Exposure

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the
defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obiigation.

Demographic risk : This is the risk of varfability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit abligation is not straight forward and depends upon the
combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial
analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee,
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30 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief aperating
decision maker as defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments. The Company operates in a single business segment of
financing and there are no separate reportable segments identified as per the Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting.

31 Earnings per share (EPS)
a} Computation of basic & diluted earnings per share is given below:

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Basic & Diluted earnings per share

Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders (4} (Rs. In thousands) 237,845 192,334
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 146,284,720 146,284,720
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (A/B} (Rs.) 1.63 131
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10 10

32 Capital management
The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting capital
adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI}. The adequacy of the Company's
capital is monitored using, amongst other measures, the regulations issued by RBI. Company has complied in full with all
its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. The primary objectives of the Company’s capital
management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains
strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have
been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by
the Board.

Regulatory Capital

. . . . As at As at
Capital to risk assets ratio {CRAR): March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Tier 1 capital 5,106,681 4,879,685
Tier il capital 1,147 858
Total capital 5,107,828 4,380,543
Risk weighted assets 11,501,589 8,808,648
CRAR (%) 44.41% 55.41%
CRAR - Tier | capital {%4) 44.40% 55.40%
CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 0.01% 0.01%
Amount of subordinated debt considered as Tier Il capital - -
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -
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33 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (All amounts in INR thousands, undess otherwise stated)
The table halow shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
~ Within 12 months|After 12 months Total Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,597 - 3,597 12,274 - 12,274
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 403,260 - 403,260 403,202 - 403,202
Investments* - 17,057 17,057 - 209,799 209,799
Loans 6,118,050 5,353,088 11,471,138 6,032,400 2,549,027 8,581,427
Other financial assets 6,998 150 7,148 6,998 150 7,148
Total financial assets {A) 6,531,905 5,370,285 11,902,200 6,454,874 2,758,976 9,213,850
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net} - 154,430 154,430 - 143,181 143,181
Property, plant and equipment - 3,260 3,260 - 4,351 4,351
Intangible assets - 2,016 2,016 - 3,527 3,527
Cther non-financial assets 1,839 - 1,839 5,209 - 5,209
Total Non-financial assets (B) 1,839 159,706 161,545 5,209 151,059 156,268
Total assets [C = A+B) 6,533,744 5,530,001 12,063,745 6,460,083 2,910,035 9,370,118
Financial liahilities
Payables
{1) Trade payables
{i} total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - o - - - -
{il) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 14,153 - 14,153 10,700 - 10,700
Debt securities 3,813,259 - 3,813,259 2,816,565 - 2,816,555
Borrowings [other than debt securities) 1,225,128 1,850,000 3,075,128 - 1,620,000 1,620,000
Other financial liabilities 671 - 671 856 - B56
Total financial liabilities (D) 5,053,211 1,850,000 6,903,211 2,828,121 1,620,000 | 4,448,121
e |
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liahilities (Net} B - - - - -
Provisions 3,263 - | 3,263 2,077 - 2,077 |
Other non-financial liabilities 3,646 - 3,646 3,093 - 3,093
Total Non-financial liabilities (E) 6,909 - 6,909 5,170 - ) 5,170
Total liabilites (F = D+E) 5,060,120 1,850,000 6,910,120 2,833,291 1,620,000 : 4,453,291
|
Net [C-F) 1,473,624 3,680,001 5,153,625 3,626,792 1,290,035 | 4,916,827

* As per the maturity profile prescribed by RBI in master circular, non-mandatory unlisted securities should be classified over 5 years’ bucket. Hence, mutual fund
though liquid in nature had been classified under the said bucket. As on March 2023: NIL {March 2022: INR 192,742 '000)
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34 Fair value measurement

a)

Financial Instruments by Category

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in respeet of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2A (v} to the financial

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

statements.
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Fair value Fair value Amortised Fair value Fair value | Amortised
through through OCI cost through through OCI cost
Profit or Loss Profit or Loss
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3,597 - - 12,274
Bank balance other than cash and cash - - 403,260 - - 403,202
equivalents
Loans - - 11,471,138 - - 8,581,427
Investments - 17,057 - 192,742 17,057 -
Other financial assets - - 7,148 - - 7,148
Total Financial Assets - 17,057 11,885,143 192,742 17,057 9,004,051
Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables - - 14,153 - - 10,700
Debt securities - - 3,813,259 - - 2,816,565
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 3,075,128 - - 1,620,000
Other financial liabilities - - 671 - - 856
Total Financial Liabilities - - 6,903,211 - - 4,448,121
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34 Fair value measurement (Contd.}

b} Fair value hierarchy

<

This section explains thejudgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {a) recognised and measured at fair
value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard,

The hierarchies used are as follows:

Leve! 1: Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using guoted prices. The quoted equity securities are valued at guoted prices as per the stock
exchange.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in am active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is inciuded in level 2.

Level 3: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on ohservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

As at March 31, 2023
Assets and liabilities for which fair value [
5 ) anile rvatues Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
are disclosed
Financial assets
Investments 6 - - 17,057 17,057
Tote! financial assets - - 17,057 17,057
As at March 31, 2022
Assets an ilities f hich fai
as . d liablities for which fair values Note Level1 Leve! 2 Level 3 Total
are disclosed
Financial assets
Investments 6 192,742 - 17,057 209,759
Total financlal assets 192,742 . 17,057 209,799

i} There are ne transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

=

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation technigue:

The fair value of financial instruments are dassified into three categories i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuation technigue. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities {level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable
inputs {level 3 measurements).

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Jiability in an orderly transaction in the principal market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technigue,

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
- The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis and the discount rates used were adjusted for
counterparty or own credit risk.

Valuation protess

The credit risk management team performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values.
This team reports directly to the CRO and these valuations are reviewed by CFO.

The main level 3 inputs for loans against financial securities are discount rates, which are determined using weighted-average interest rates of loans sanctioned in
March 2023 and March 2022.

d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Carrying Value Falr Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets
Loan agalnst financial securities {LAS) 11,471,138 11,644,458 8,581,427 8,473,962
Total financial assets 11,471,138 11,644,458 8,581,427 8,473,962
Financial liabilities
Debt securities 3,813,259 3,813,259 2,816,565 2,816,565
Borrowings ~ 3,075,128 3,075,128 1,620,000 1,620,000
Total financial liabilities 6,888,387 6,888,387 4,436,565 4,436,565

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twalve maonths), the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of
their fair value. Such instruments include, cash and bank balances, security deposits, other financial assets, trade and other payables, other financial liabilities,
debt securities and borrowings. Such amounts have been classified as Level 3.
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35

35.1

(2)

{All amounts in INR theusands, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.The Company's risk management is carried cut by the Company's Risk
Management team (led by a CRQ) under pelicies approved by the board of directors. The Company has a loan policy, which provides guidances for overall risk
management, specifically credit risk and market risk. There is also an intevest rate policy to manage interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Company's customers, clients or market counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual
obligations to the Company. Credit risk arises mainly fram loans and advances, and loan commitments arising from such lending activities.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Company’s business; management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. The credit risk
management and control are centralised in a credit risk management team which reports in to the CRO. Assessment of lending proposals includes assessment
of borrower's background; financial strength and leverage; operational & financial performance track record; cash flows; valuation of collateral and similar
parameters.

The Company offers a single product which is lending against finandial securities {LAS). It is more than 100% secured product with regulatory risk weight
assigned of 100%. A real-time risk monitoring system is put in place to assist the risk team to initiate the necessary margin call triggers and take necessary
action including liquidation of collaterals to protect against the probable bad debts.

Loans and advances {incl. loan commitments and guarantees)
The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is cemplex and requires the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market
conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfalio of assets entalls further estimations as to the likelihood of
defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties. The Company measures credit risk using Probability of
Default (PD), Expasure at Default {EAD) and Loss Given Default {LGD). This is similar to the approach used for the purpases of measuring Expected Credit Loss
{ECL) under Ing AS 109. Refer to note 35.1{b} for more details.

Other financial assets

The Company has credit risk exposure in cash and cash equivalents, depesits with banks, and other financial assets. Cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits are held with only high rated banks/financial institutions only, therefore credit risk is perceived to be low.

Other financial assets pertain to security deposits for rented premises, margin deposit, The Company does not perceive any significant decline in credit risk of
the lessors and hence expected probability of default is considered as low.

Customer Risk Rating (CRR)

The Company uses internal CRR rating model that enahles its assessment of the probahility of default of individual counterparties. The internal CRR is tailored
to the various categories of counterparty. Borrower and loan spedific information coliected at the ime of application {such as disposable income, and level of
collateral) is fed into this rating model. This Is supplemented with external data such as credit bureau scoring infermation on individual borrowers.

The internal CRR s calibrated such that the risk of defauit increases exponentially at each higher CRR.

The Company has its own internal credit rating framework that is uses for rating of the borrowers at the time of sanction and during the annual re-rating
exercise. Any other known information about the barrower which impacts their creditworthiness — such as unemployment and previous delinguency history —
is also incorporated into the annual re-rating exercise, Based on the analysis done by the Company, the parameters in the rating model {borrower strength,
operating risk, market risk, financials, etc.) are given a score between 1 {highest) to 10 (lowest). The internal rating is based on the final score derived from the
credit rating model.

Refer to table below for details:

Internal score Description of the grade
0.1,1.1,1.2 Minimum Default Risk
21,22 Low Default Risk
3.1,3.2,3.3 Satisfactory Default Risk
4.1,4.2,4.3 Fair Default Risk
51,5253 Moderate Default Risk
6.1,6.2 Significant Default Risk
71,72 High Default Risk
8.1,8.2, 83 Special Management
9,10 Default

%
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35.1 Credit risk management {Contd.)

(b} Expected credit loss measurement
Ind AS 109 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
- A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition Is classified in ‘Stage 1’ and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Company.
- If a significant increase In credit risk [SICR') since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired. Please refer ta note 35.1{b}{i} for a description of how the Company determines when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.
- If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3'. Please refer to note 35.1(b}{ii) for a description of how the
Company defines credit-impaired and default.
- Finangial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events
possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis. Please refer to
note 35.i(b)(iv} for a description of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring the ECL.
- A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with Ind AS 109 is that it should consider forward-looking information. Note 35.1(b}{v} includes an
explanation of how the Company has incorporated this in its ECL models.
The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under Ind AS 109 {other than purchased or ariginated credit-impaired financial assets}:

Change In credit quality since Initial recognlition

s
A

Stage 1 ‘ Stage 2 | Stage 3

|
(tnitial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk {Credit-impaired assets)
since initial recognition}

|
12-month expected credit losses l Lifefime expected creditlosses | Lifetime expected credit losses

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Company in addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

{i} Significant Increase in cedit risk (SICR)
The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in eredit risk when one or more of the following quantitative,
qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

Quantitative criteria:

The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due. Accordingly, the financlal assets shall be classified as Stage 2, if on the reporting date, it has been more than 30 days past due. It may be
kept in mind that the Company's Risk Management team can initiate sale of securities through invacation, to regularise the contractual payments due to the
Company.

Qualitative criteria:

£ar all financial instruments held by the Company, if the borrower is on the watch, worry, monitor list and/or the instrument meets one or mere of the
following criteria:

- Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/er ecanomic conditions in which the borrower operates

- Significant change in collateral value (secured facilities only) which is expected to increase risk of default

- Early signs of cash flow/liguidity problems such as delay in servicing of trade creditors/loans

- The CRR of the borrower deteriorates to Significant Default Risk (internal score: 6.1, 6.2} / High Default Risk (internal score: 7.1, 7.2)

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking Iinformation (refer to note 35.1(b){v} for further information) and is performed on a menthly basis at a
partfolio leyel. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the independent Risk Management team.

Backstop

The Company enjoys mare than 100% callateral cover, There is a theoretical passibility that factors beyond the controf of the Risk Management team may
impact the realisabiiity of security cover. Amongst other things, same such factors are listed below:

- Injunction on borrower, which prevents the Company from selling the collateral cover

- Regulatory advise on no sale of securities

- Underlying collateral security is locked on the lower circuit or have only sellers in the stocks

\




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.}

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

35,1 Credit risk management {Contd.}

(i)

Definition of defau't and credit-impaired assets

Borrowers for whom the CRR has deteriorated to Special Management (internal score: 8.1, 8.2, 8.3) / Default {internal score: 9, 10), are considered to be credit-
impaired.

In the SICR section ab‘gve, the potential impact of factors beyond the control of the Risk Management team has been enumerated. Apart from the
uncontroliable factors, the Company does not foresee a scenario where the financial instruments would be credit-impaired, by virtue of one or more of the
following criteria:

- The Company is conservative in its' customer selection triteria

- The Cempany observes an internal rating criteria before onboarding new custemers and before renewing limits for existing customers

- The Company atcepts collateral cover anly for eligible securities. The criteria for determining eligible securities is described in the loan policy for each
category of collateral {equity shares, mutueal funds, bonds etc.}

- In the past 3 years, HIFSL has not witnessed any Credit defaults or Credit losses on the LAS as a product. All leans are Stage 1 assets with a satisfactory
historical repayment behavior.

- The loans offered have a contractual tenor of 12-36 months. Loans with a contractual tenar of more than 12 manths are subject to annual review and
approval, All the loans have a put/call aption far the berrower/iender respectively.

_ All financial collateral are valied on a continuing basis vis-a-vis the loan exposure for any shortfall which are required to be regularised in a maximum of 7
working day's time. Else, the financial collateral are subject to sell off.

- Any financial collateral showing quality deterioration is required to be swapped with better quality security as advised by Risk Management team.

- All loans are demand loans recallable with a short notice.

{iii} Upgradation from higher stage to lower stage

(iv)

For upgradation from higher stage to lower stage (i.e. 1o have cured):
Loan and advances is not moved from higher stage to lower stage immediately after payment of overdue amount, following cooling off period is applied:

From Stage 2 to Stage 1
- Contractual payments are in lower than 30 days past due for at least six months

This period of six months has been determined based on an analysis which considers the likelihoad of a financial instrument returning to default status atter
cure using different possible cure definitions.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month {12M) or Lifetime basis depending an whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-mpaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability
of Befault (PD), Exposur‘;. at Default {EAD), and Loss Given Default {LGD), defined as follows:

- The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting an its financiat obligation {as per “Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the
next 12 menths {12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime {Lifetime PD) of the abligation.

- £AD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12 months {12M EAD} or aver the remaining lifetime
{Lifetime EAD), For example, for a revelving commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be
drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

- Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on & defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage lass per unit of expasure at the time of default (EAD}.
LGO is calculated on a 12-month or fifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to he made if the default occurs in the next 12
months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the lean,

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for each individual exposure or collective segment. These three
compenents are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month}. This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then discounted back to the reparting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

Forward-looking econemic information is also included in determining the PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to note 35.1(b){v} for an explanation of farward-looking
information and its inclusion in ECL calculations.

There have been no significant changes in estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the reporting period.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL model

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information. All Toans are Stage 1 assets with a satisfactary historical repayment behaviour. The
Company's LAS portfolio comprises highly liquid financial coliateral which are valued on a continuing basis vis-2-vis the loan exposure far any shartfall which
are required to be regularised in a maximum of 7 working day's time, Else, the financial collateral are subject to sell off.

In the SICR section above, the potential impact of factors beyond the cantrol of the Risk Management team has been enumerated. Apart from the
uncontrollable factors, it is unlikely that any of the Stage 1 assets would move to Stage 2.

Other forward-locking considerations not otherwise incorporated within the abave scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative or palitical
changes, which are likely to culminate into reduction in realisable value of collateral securities are built in through the annual stress-testing exercise (which is a
regulatory requirementi The portfolio is stress-tested under various scenarios to arrive at the impact analysis on the loan pertfolio, but are not deemed to
have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for appropriateness on an
annual basis,
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35.1 Credit risk management {Contd.)

{vi} Finantial assets rmeasured on a collective basls
ECLis calculated on a collective basis for the entire LAS porfolio.

{vii) Account review method
Drawing power ratio is the percentage of loan over the net value of securities.

Drawing Power Ratio: ~ (Value of Security afier haircut) * 100

Loan Outstanding

On a daily basis, the risk report will be generated taking the latest end of day price and DP ratio is ascertained, Where the DP ratio is less than 95%, the margin

call will be raised to custemer. In case of extreme fall in the market, an intraday risk report is prepared and necessary actions are taken for margin shortfall by
credit risk team.

Based on Drawing Power Ratio, the loans would be categerized as follows:

Margin Call Drawing Power [ratio) Category Course of Action Time Lines for Time Lines for
action — Equity action = Other
shares * Securities **
Not applicable 95% - 100% {>97% for Securities with{Normal Loans Shortfall notice |Within 7 (Seven)iNo action
security portfolio LTV of greater than \working Days failing|required.
egual to B0% ) |which positions will
be squared off | __
Margin Call 85 - 85 % {97% for Securities with|Y Category Loans  |Shortfall notice |7 (Seven) Working|7 (Seven) Working
security portfolio LTV of greater than Days te top the|Days to top thel
equal to 80%) margins failing which|Margins  failing
positions  will beiwhich positions
| squared off. |will  be squared)
| |off. |
Square off < B5 % (94% for securities with|YY Category Loans |Square off after|immediate Square off|Immediate Square
security portfolio LTV of greater than appropriate after giving|off after giving
equal to 80%) ' intimatioa to|appropriate appropriate
| ‘ customer. intimation to  the|intimation to the
! | borrawer. i barrower. |
| = l __|

* For any high risk lending against equity shares or mutual funds (for e.g. single stock lending, promoter lending, etc.] case, the stringent timeline of five
working days for the Category "Y” shortfall shall apply.

** Any mixed collateral securities portfolio with more than 65% equity shares composition will be considered as a 100% equity portfolio for Margin Call
management and process. All regularization timelines as applicable for a 100% Equity Shares portfolio shall apply to such a portfolio.

(¢) Credit risk exposure

{i} Maximum expasure to credit risk — Financial instruments subject to impairment

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross carrying
amaount of financial assets below also represents the Campany’s maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets.

As at March 31, 2023

Asset group Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Total

Performing
Minimum Default Risk - . . .
Low Default Risk - - = R
satisfactory Default Risk 11,134,810 - - 11,134,810
Fair Default Risk 337,474 - - 337,474
Maoderate Default Risk - - - .
Significant Default Risk - B - .
High Default Risk - - R .
Special Management - B - -
Default - N . -
Non- performing
Individually impaired - - - R
Total Total 11,472,285 - - 11,472,285

Loan against financial securities {LAS)
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35.1 Credit risk management {Contd.)

As at March 31, 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Asset group Internal rating grade Total

Performing
Minimum Default Risk - E - .
Low Default Risk - - - .
Satisfactory Default Risk 8,188,325 - - B,188,325
Fair Default Risk 393,960 - - 393,960
Maoderate Default Risk - - = -
Significant Default Risk - . . .
High Default Risk - - - -
$pecial Management - - -
Default - - N R
Nen- performing
Individually impaired - - - .
Total Total 8,582,284 - - 8,582,284

Lean against financial securities {LAS)

{il) Coliateral
The amount and type of callateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability
and valuation of each type of collateral.
The Company has internal policies on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The Company prepares 2 valuation of the
collateral obtained as part of the loan origination process. This assessment is reviewed periedically. The principal collateral types are:
- |isted stocks
- Units of mutual funds {both equity & debt schemes including Fixed Maturity Plans)
- Bonds (sovereign and corperate)
The fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. it is generally assessed, at a minimum, at incepticn and re-assessed on a regular basis.

As per the contractual terms, collateral is permitted to be sold on event of default (Refer Note 35.1{b){vii})

Particulars Gross exposure to | Impairment Carrying amount Fair value of
credit risk allowance® collateral held#

As at March 31, 2023

- Loan against financial securities {LAS) 11,472,285 (1,147} 11,471,138 31,740,142
Total 11,472,285 {1,147) 11,471,138 31,740,142
As at March 31, 2022

- Loan against financial securities (LAS) 8,582,285 (858) 8,581,427 25,100,760
Total _§£BZ, 285 (858)) 8,581,427 25,100,760

* Impairment allowance: 0.01% far March 31, 2023; 0.013% for March 31, 2022
# Fair value of collateral held incledes collateral amount againt which no loan is cutstanding as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

(i} Loss allowance
The loss allowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below:
- Transfers between stages due to financial instruments experiencing significant Increases {or decreases} of credit risk in the pericd;
- Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the pericd, as well as releases for financial instruments de-recagnised in the period;

- Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

- Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;
- Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;
- Financlal assets derecagnised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were written off during the pericd {see note 35.1(c}).
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An analysis of change in the gross carrying amount of the loan portfolio and corresponding loss allowance:
The following table further explains changes In the gross carrying amount of the loan portfolic to help explain their significance to the changes in the loss
allowance tor the same portfolio as discussed below:

Asset group Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Opening balance 8,582,285 - 8,582,285
Loans given 11,447,892 - 11,447,852
Loan against financial securities {LAS} |Loans repaid {including partial (B,557,892) (8,557.,892)
repayments)
Closing halance 1..&172,285 - 11,472,285
Asset group Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Opening balance 5,967,653 - 5,967,653
Loans given 13,160,494 - 13,160,494
Loan against financlal securities (LAS) |Loans repaid (including partial {10,545,862) - {10,545,862)
repayments)
Closing balance 8,582,285 - 8,582,285

The following table explains the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and at the end of the annual

perlod due to various factors:

Year ended March 31, 2023

Asset group Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening balance 858 - 858

Loans given 1,145 B 1,145

Loans repaid {including partial {856) - {856}
Loan against financial securities (LAS)  |repayments)

Net remeasurement of loss - - o

allowance

Closing halance 1,147 Q 1,147
Asset group Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Total

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

{pening balance 597 - - 597

Loans given 1,316 - - 1,316

Loans repaid (including partia {1,055) - - {1,055)
Loan agalnst financial securities {LAS) |repayments)

Net remeasurement of loss - . -

allowance

Closing balance 358 - - 858

(d) Write-off policy
Margin calls letters are sent to customers whenever there is margin shortfall. In case customer fails to timely top-up the margins and brings it to approved
levels, sale of the securities will be initiated by Relationship Managers. Pledge / Lien an Stocks / Other Security will be invoked fully or partially and same will
be liguidated to clear the margin shortfall and other dues, if any. In the event of shertfall of securities to cover the outstanding dues, the Company shal
initiate appropriate legal action against the customer based on the documentaticn executed with the customer. Excess fund balance, if any, will be transferred
to customer's registered bank account with HIFSL and excess securities will be freed from pledge/lien, post clearing of dues on the account.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. The outstanding cantractual amounts of such assets written off during
the period ended March 31, 2023 was NIL {March 31, 2022 -NIL).

{e) Concentration of credit risk
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk to specific industry sectors and/or regions. For concentration of credit risk to customers, refer note 40

part19,

{f) Significant estimates and judgements
The lass allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the Impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
Ipoking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 35.1.
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35.2 Liquidity risk and funding management
Prudent fiquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adeguate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Company
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

a) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities, including committed lines, at the end of the reporting period:
- Particulars et Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Floating rate
-Expiring within one year {bank overdraft and other facilities, with renewal option) 2,005,483 1,230,000
-Expiring beyond one year {other facilities} 900,000 1,130,000

b

Maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities as at the year end. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash fiows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. The
Company does not have any derivative financial liabilities.

As at March 31, 2023
Within 12 months After 12 months

Contractual maturities of financial assets | Carrying Lessthan3 | 3monthsto | 6 monthsto1l| Betweenland3 | Between3and5 Total

and financial liabilities Amount months 6 months year years years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,597 3,597 - - - - 3,597
Banfc balance other than cash and cash 403,260 325,701 1,164 79,908 i i 406,773
equivalents above
Loans 11,471,138 1,365,903 1,462,678 4,066,058 2,674,260 3,830,539 13,389,438
Investments 17,057 - - - - 17,057 17,057
Other financial assets 7,148 6,998 - - - 150 7,148
Total assets 11,902,200 1,702,199 1,463,842 4,145,266 2,674,260 3,847,746 13,834,013
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 14,153 11,187 907 2,059 - - 14,153
Debt securities 3,813,259 3,850,000 - - - . 3,850,000
Borrowings (other than debt securities} 3,075,128 1,224,678 31,754 104,724 2,085,634 - 3,446,790
Other financial liabilities 671 - - 671 - - 671
Total liabilities - 6,903,211 5,085,865 32,661 107,454 2,085,634 - 7,311,614
As at March 31, 2022

Within 12 months After 12 months i

Contractual maturities of financial assets |  Carrying Lessthan3 | 3 monthsto | 6 monthsto 1| Betweenland3 | Between3and5 { Total

and financial liabilities Amount months 6 months year years years |
Financial assets [
Cash and cash equivalents 12,274 12,274 - - . - 12,274
Ban!c balance other than cash and cash 403,202 295,064 1301 111,147 ) ) 407,512
equivalents above
Loans 8,581,427 831,130 1,038,826 4,599,110 1,363,401 1,693,318 9,525,834
Investmenits 209,799 192,742 - - - 17,057 209,799
Other financial assets 7,148 - - 6,998 - 150 7,148
Total assets 5,213,850 1,331,260 1,040,127 4,717,255 1,363,401 1,710,525 10,162,567
Financial liabitities
Trade payables 10,700 9,743 130 828 - - 10,701
Debt securities 2,816,565 2,100,000 750,000 o & - 2,850,000
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 1,620,000 24,718 24,990 49,436 198,288 1,710,180 2,007,612
Other financial liabilities 856 - - B56 - - 856
Total liabilities 4,448,121 2,134,461 775,120 51,120 198,288 1,710,180 4,869,169
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35,3 Market Risk

Market risk is that the fair value or future cash flows cf financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and price movements.

a) Interest rate risk - lending

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes In interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The
Company’s main interest rate risk arises from lending with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. As at March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company’s lending portfolio at variable rate are denominated in Indian Rupees.

i) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's lending portfolio to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting periods/years are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2022 |
Variable rate loans* 11,472,285 8,582,285 |
Fixed rate loans - -

Total 11,472,285 8,582,285 |

* The loan amounts are the gross carrying value

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable rate loan {asset} outstanding:

As at March 31, 2023 wei':::;i::;fge Balance % of total loans

Loans B.67% 11,472,285 100%|

As at March 31, 2022 w?:t:t;‘:::;?ge Balance % of total loans

Loans 6.89% 8,582,285 100%
it} Sensitivity

Profit and loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from variable rate loans as a result of changes in interest rates.

. Impact on profit after tax
Particulars and equity
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,

| 2023 2022

|Intarest rates — increase by 60 {March 31, 50.967 38,263
2022: 60) basis points ) !
Interest rates — decredse by 60 (March 31, [50,967) {38,263)
2022: 60) basis points : ’ ]

The sensitivity is derived holding all other variables constant
b) Interest rate risk exposure - borrowings
i} Interast rate risk exposure - borrowings

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing portfolia to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting periods/years are as follows:
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,

Particulars 2013 2023
Overdraft from Bank 175,128 -
Working Capital Bemand Loan 1,050,000 -
Loan from the holding Company 1,850,000 1,620,000
Variable rate loans 3,075,128 1,620,000
Commercial papers 3,813,259 2,816,565
Fixed rate loans 3,813,259 2,816,565
Total 5,888,387 4,436,565

As at the end of the reperting period, the Company had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:

Weighted average
Balance % of total loans
As at March 31, 2023 interest rate
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 7.04% 3,075,128 45%
Weighted average
Balance % of total loans
As at March 31, 2022 interest rate
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 6.12% 1,620,000 37%
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{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

35,3 Market Risk (Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

it} Sensitivity

Profit and loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income/{expense) from variable rate loans as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars Impact on profit after tax and equity
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
Interest rates —increase by 60 {March 31,
2022: 60) basis points (13,804) (7,274)
Interest rates - decrease by 60 {March 31,
2022: 60) basis points 13,804 72

The sensitivity is derived holding all other variables constant.

c) Interest rate risk exposure - investments in debt oriented mutual funds
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk from investments held in debt oriented mutual fund units. These funds invest in debt securities. The
exposure to interest rate risk in case of units backed by debt securities is measured using sensitivity analysis as follows:

Particufars Impact on profit after tax and equity
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
91 days T-bill - increase by 100 basis points - 1,978
91 days T-bill - decrease by 100 basis points - {1,978)

d) Foreign currency risk
The Company dees not have any foreign currency denominated exposures in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the balance sheat
date that will result in net currency gains or losses in the statement of profit and loss due to change foreign currency exchange rates.

e) Price risk
The Company dees not have exposures in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities as at balance sheet date that will result in changes in

statement of profit or loss or equity due to change in prices.




HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Services {India) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {Contd.)

36 Related party transactions [As per Ind AS 24}

As per Ind AS 24 on 'Related Party Disclosure’, as prescribed by the Rules, the related parties are as follows:

{a) Name of related Parties and nature of relationship.

1. Holding Company
HSBC InvestDirect [India) Private Limited

2. Ultimate Holding Company
HSBC Holdings Pie

diate Holding Company
HSBC Securities and Capital Markets (tndia) Private Limited

3. Interm

4., Post Employement Benfit Plan [PEBP}

MSBC InvestDirect Financial Services [(India) Limited Employee Gratuity Trust

5, Fellow Subsidiaries/ Enterprises managed by subsidaries
HSBC Viclet Investments {Mauritius) Limited

HSBC InvestDirect Sales & Marketing (India} Limited

HSBC InvestDirect Securities (Indla} Private Limited

HSBC Asset Managerent (Indis} Private Limited

L&T Investment Management Limited

HSBC Software Development (Indla) Private Limited

HSBC Blectronic Data Processing India Private Limited,

HSBC Group Management Services Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Cerporation Uimited - India Branches

6. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP);

M. Berlin Varghese, Managing Director {appointed w.e.f April 03, 2023}

Mr. Shantanu Shankar, Managing Director {resigned w.e.f March 18 , 2023)

Mr. $anket Sanghavi, Additional Director {Non-Executive) (appointed w.e.d, February 01, 2023)
Ms. Roopa Varma, Chairperson & Additional Director (Non-Executive) (appointed w.e.f. February ¢1, 2023)

Mr. Madhur Malviya - Director (resigned w.e.f, 13 April 2022}
Mr. Deepak Sarup - Director (resigned w.e.f. Navember 16, 2022)
Mr. Brij Bhushan - Directar

Ms. Payal Rajesh Advan - Birector

{b) Transactions durlng the year with related parties:

[All amaounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated}

Amounts in brackets represents amount relating to previous year

Fellow Subsldiarles/
Particulars Holding Campany Enterptise managed KMpP PEBP Intermediate holding| Ultimate holding
by Subsidaries Company Company

. . 110,784 - - - E s

Interest an Line of Credit 195,101 & b 0 %) “

Professional fees : 1814 . . 862 i

) 11,127) ) i) [597) )

Rent - 10,196 - - - -

N =] {12,301) &l [ il ]

Repair and Maintenance 7 181 R N . "

L () (B1) ) t) ) ()

- 1,328 5 - - -

| Miscellaneous expenses _ 836)| ) ¢ Y )
Director sitting fees | [_; .'-; [5:?5} [_; — 'l |

TR . - E 1,150 - .

Contribution to gratuity trust () ) ) (312) .| )

4 . - - - - 135,500

Margin deposit placed ) () (- () (38,100)| (-

e . - - - - 135,300 | .
Margin deposit refunded H ) X (4 ! (40,600 | 2l

Security depasit placed | E-] : I:.»i'-B-ﬁ [_; ‘_; 0l (0




HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.}

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
36 Related party transactions (As per Ind AS 24) (Contd.}

{c) Outstanding balances at the year end with related parties:

Fellow Subsldiarles/ "
Particulars Holding Company Enterprise managed KMP PEBP Intermediate holding] Ultimate halding
by Subsidaries Company Company

Bank balance {in current account)

3i-Mar-23 g 331 - - - -

3i-Mar-22 B a7 - i . B
Security deposits T

31-Mar-23 - 6,998 - - - -

3i-Mar-22 - 6,998 - - - -
Investments -

31-Mar-23 - 17,057 N < o -

31-Mar-22 - 17,057 - - - -
Barrawings

31-Mar-23 1,850,000 v 0 - - -

31-Mar-22 1,620,000 - g . : )
Trade payables

31-Mar-23 -1 3,211 - - 321 -

31-Mar-22 - 2,234 N - 148 -
Gratuity Payable to the Trust ]

31-Mar-23 - - - 2,455 - N

31-Mar-22 - - - 1,353 - -

37 Core investment Company {CIC] as part of group companles
The Company is wholly owned subsiciary of HSBC InvestDirect {India) Private Limited "formerly known as MSBC InvestDirect {India) Limited” {HIDL). HIBL was incorporated on September 1,

1387 and principal activity of HIDL s Investing in and providing loans to subsidiaries, associates and employees' welfara trusts, Based on RBI CIC regulations and amendments thereto, the

Company does not meet chiteria of Systemically Important CICs (CIC-ND-SI) and consequently does not require registration with RBI. Thare are no other CICs within the group,

38 Uhilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

A.The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any other saurces or kind of funds} to any other person{s) or entity(ies), including
fareign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding {whether recarded in writing or atherwise) that the Intermediary shall

i} efirectly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

lil} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

B.The Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entitylies}, including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Company shall:

{i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




HSBC InvestDirect Financta! Services {india) Limited
Notes to financia! statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)

33 Comparison between provisions required under IRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109

(Al amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 21, 2023
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset classification  [Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Met Carrying Provisions required |Difference between
as per Ind AS 109 Amount as per Ind  |(Provisions) as Amount as per IRACP norms [ind AS 109
AS required under Ind provisions and IRACP
A5 109 norms
i 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-b
Performing Assets
Standard - Stage 1 11,472,285 1,147 11,471,138 45,889 {44,742)
Stage 2 - - - - -
Subtotal 11,472,285 1,147 11,471,138 45,889 (44,742)
Non-Performing Assets
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - .
Doubtful -up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
1t0 3 years Stage 3 - - N - N
Mare than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - N
Subtotal for doubtful |
Lass Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal for NPA . - - . N
Other items such as guarantees, lpan Stage 1
commitments, ete. which are in the scope of] z - - ~ ] -
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current(Stage 2 . . R ) }
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACP) norms Stage 3
Subtotal . B - B N
Stage 1 11,472,285 1,147 11,471,138 45,889 {44,742)
Total Stage 2 E - = - -
Stage 3 - - - - -
Total 11,472,285 1,147 11,471,138 45,889 {44,742)
As at March 31, 2022
Asset Classificatlon as per RBI Norms Asset classification  [Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provisions required |Difference between
as per Ind AS 109 Amount as per Ind  |(Provisions) as Amount as per IRACP norms |Ind AS 109
AS required under Ind provisions and IRACP
AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 5] 7=4-6
Performing Assets
g 7 \
Standard Stage 1 8,582,285 858 8,581,42 34,329 (33,471)
| Stage 2 E - - - -
|Subtatal 8,582,285 858 8,581,427 34,329 (33,471)
Non-Performing Assets 3
Substandard Stage 3 - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - | -
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - | -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - 1 -
Subtotal for doubtful |
|
Loss Stage 3 B = ' - N
Subtotal for NPA - - - - | -
Other Hems such as pguarantees, loan|Stage 1 - - o & -
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Stage 2 - - - -
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current
Income Recegnition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACP) norrms Stage 3
Subtotal ) E - = - -
Stage 1 8,582,285 858 8,581,427 34,329 | e (33,471)
- o
Total Stage 2 - 5 - ;/.?Z.I\l\ces Un.:\{
Stage 3 - - - Va3 N
| Total 8,582,285 858 8,581,427
WP
R




HSBC InvastRirect Financial Services (India) imited
Notes to finandial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Contd.)

40 NBFC disclosures

1. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR]

[Amaunt in As. crore)

Particulars AsatMerch31,2023  Asat March 31, 2022
(i) CRAR (3%} 44.41% 55.41%
173 ERAR -Tler | Casital %1 a2.4m% 55.40%
() CRAR «Tler 1 Capital [%] 001% 0.51%
[tv) Amount of suterainated debt raised as Tier Il capital = .
(4] Amount raised by 1iue of Perpetua trum

2. tiquidity Coverage Ratio

[Particuraes AsatMarch 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
{] Liquidity Coverage Ratia [%} Not appticable Nn? applizable

3. Investments:

N Particulars As at March 31. 2023 At at March 31.2022
(1 Gross Value of Investmenty
{a} Inindia 11 20.98]
{5l Outslde Indla - i
111 Provisions for Depreciation
(8] 1n india . -
bl Dutside India - i
[0 Net Value of in ents
17 20.28
| . 5
21 s held towards depreciation on investments. *
il Dpening balarce - b |
] Add : Provisions made during the year -
13 : Write- wite-back of excess provisions during the year - -
L [ haging Balanc - -
* Refer note 6 o
a. Derivatives:
The Company has na fransact'crs [ exsoiutes n dervatves (2 the cutrent and previous year.
5. Disclosyres relating to Securitisation:
The Company has not spld losns through Securitisation i the current and previous year.
6. Datalis of financial assets soid te recurtation | recomtn n Cornparry for asiet reconstruction
The Company hzs nat so'd financlal ssiets to Securitisation / Reconstrustion Companles for assat reconstruction In the current and previous year.
7. Details of assignment transactions undertaken:
The Compeny has notundertaken assignment transactions in the current and previcus yeur.
8. Deteils of non-performing financial assets purchased f 5o
The Comeany has not purehased fscld ren-performing financials assets in the curvent and previous year,
9. Asset Liablity Management Mat. ern of certalniterss of Astets and lakiitles
Particulars Odayta7 15 days to Ower 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over & QverlYearsto Cwer 3 | Ovars Totai
d: : Aduysta ladays | 30/31 days (One| Months upta | Months upto Months to Months to 3 Yaart Yearsto Years
v menth] 2 Manths 3 Months & Menths 1¥ear 5Years
Depesits | T
March 31, - - - - - - - B - -
| March31 207 1 - = _ - - - —— |
Loans and advances
11.89 72.20 4.64 1.7 123.62 37388 188.38 347.00 - 1,147.22
March3i 2 511 015 4147 1375 140 20389 A&3 31 104 68 | 15025 HS873
|
- - - | . - | - . - - i 171
. = - - I I ! 208 088
[ [ I
| [
1.78 2.86 0.3 - 156 - - -
953 0.00 | - 1056 | =l - =
| [
March 31, 2023 220 44.07 17783 53.76 - 347 185.00 | - -
March 31, el 5375 437 | 7320 - 152.00
Foreign currency |
assats
arch 32, - - - - - - - - B =
Aarch 31, = - — — - =0 —_— -
gn curre |
Fatities | |
March 31 - - - | - - . = - - o
L March 31, =k = - LIS | 1 | -
10. Exposures:
urs 1t Capital Marke!
Particulars March 31,2023 atarch 31, 2022
n direct [nvestment in equity shares, comvertible bonds, convertible debantures and units of esuty-criented mutual funds the corpus B .
of whith I not exclusively Invested in corporate debt;#
advanees against shares f bonds / debenturas or pther securities or on clean basls to individuals for investment In sheres (Ineluding
] 1705 { ESOPs), tonvertible bonds, convertible and unlts of equity-oriented mutual funds; B9.91 30.83
o advatices for any cther purpnsef where shares or convertible bonds ar carvertible debentures or units of equity orlented mutual 1529.00 1295.41
funds are tzken as primary secrity * ;
advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collates’ seturity of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
] debentures o un'ts of equity orlented mutual funds Le, where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds } R
converthle debenturas f units of equity crignted mutual funds ‘does not futly cover the advances;
v secured and unsesured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; _
‘0ans sanctioned to corporates agzinst the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on dean basis for meeting
[\2) promaoter’s contribution to the aquity of new campanies in aatieipation of ralsing resources;
{wii) bridge loens to ccmpanies sgainst expected equity flows Jissues; - N
) K axposures to Venture Capltal Funds (bath registered and unraglsterad) - -
| Total Exposure to Capital Market 161895 1,316.24

* This exposure incudes advances for any purposes secured by debt-oriented mutual funds and bends.
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Hotes to financial strtaments for the year ended March 31, 2023 [Contd.}

40 NEFC disclosures {Continued) - {Amount in R.crare)
The Company has no to real Inth and previous year,
Exposure 10 Seetoral Market
Current Year Previous Year
{ T :
b Percentage Total Percentage
Exposure: of Gross Exposure of Gross
[includes Grass NPas to (includes Gross i ey
on balance Hpas sotal on balance NPAs Total
sheet and {Rcrore eposureln | Sheetand 1R crore) exposure in
off-balance that sector off-balanca that sector
;. dheat ! 4 shast
1, Agticulturs - - N N N "
and Allied
Actlvities s | | )
| t T T
! ] |
0 T T T
L Industry - N - - - -
[,
t _
Othars
Total of Industry o |
[isii+., +Others] — I
t
3. Services - z - - - -
I..
. - +
R |
Qthers |
Total of Services | |
[ivite.. .+Others) I
|
4, Personal - - - - . -
Loans . _ B
Others
Total of |
Pergonal — R
—— " ——
5. Othars, if any 1,147.23 - - 85823 - -
F.Loan Against |
Securities |

The disclosures a3 above shall be hased on the sector-wise ang Industry-wise bank cred s (2801 return submitted by scheduled tommerzial banks ¢ eserve Bank and published by Reserve Bank
I the disclosures as abeve, If withia a sector, expesure to a specific sub-sector/industry Is more than 10 per cent of Tier | Capital af a NBFC, the same shall be distlosed separately within that
sector. Further, with:n a sector, if exposure ta specific sub-sectorfindustry is iess than 10 per cent of Tier | Capital, such exposures shall be clubbed and disclosad 25 “Others” within that sectsr

The Company has no I4tra Groun exposure in the current and previous year.
The Company has no exposura 1o unhedge foreign currency in the current and previous year.

11 Detalls of frandng of parent Company products:
This disclasure i+ not applicable as the Company does not Ainance parent Company products.

12, Single Borrower Umit [5GL} /f Group Borrower Limit {GEL) are not exceeded by the Company
13. Unsecuted Advances - The Company has no Unsecured Advances In the current end previous year.

14. Registration cbtaned from other financial sector reguiators: NIL

15. Disclpsure of Penalties Imposed by RBI and athes ragu'atzrs:

No penalty was impased by RBI and SEBI.

During the FY 2022-2023, the Company had flled for satisfaction of four charges against the Campany with a delay. The Ministry of Corporate Affalrs {MCA) has condone the delay in satisfaction of
the said charges with a payment of INR 1,15,000 for each charge, 2mounting to INR 4,E0,000. “The Campany has f3ed the Order of condenation with the MCA for the said satisfactian, however dus to
migration of MCA partal from version 2 10 version 3, the satisfaction status of charges (s awa'ted to be reflected on the portai.

16. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencles and migration of ratings during the year:
-
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Instrument categor I — L = -
Gaid Fitch Rating T™"5&P Global Fitch Rating SEP Global

Short term debt ING AL+ [ IND A1+
Long term debt IND ARAS Stabiie - IND AAAS Stable -
Shortterm debt I3 {CRISILAL+ I- CRISL ALt

17. Provisions and Contingencles
I Partieutars March 31, 2022 March 33, 2022
Break up of ‘Provisions and Cantingencies’ shown under the head Staternent of Profit and Loss
Provigions far depreciztion on fnvestrent -
Provision towards NPA - *
Provision made toweares Income tax £.31 3.69
Other Provislonand Contingancies {with details)
Provision made forf af trademark ar
Provision for Standard Assets 0.03 0,03

18. Draw Down from Resarves;
Thera has been no draw down from reserves durfng the current and previous year,

Concentration of Advances and Expotures

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Concentration of Advances

Total Adva wenty largest bormowers 805.40 628,26
% of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Totat Advances v 73%
Concentratias of Exposuras

Total Expasura to twenty Iapgest borrewers | customen 939.00 B17.00
% of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers [ customers to Total Expasure 51% 56%
Concentration of NPAYL

Total Expatu punts . - -
(Particutaes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sacter-wise NPAs (% of NPAs [/ Total Advances in that sectar)

Agriculture B allied activitles S .
Iicro, smatl and medium enterprises - - I
!Crrpurate borrowers - -

red personal loans " 5
lozns -

Other personal loans

Cthers

|Services - N ‘
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-
43 NBFC distlosures [Continued) {Amount in Rs.crore}
20. Disclasure of custamer complaimts:
Particulars Mazch 31, 2023 March 31,2022

No. of complaints
No. of complaints per< =g at the beginning of the year -

No. of camplaints received during the year . -
Ne. of complaints redmessed during the year - -
Mo. of complaints pendng at the end of the year - -

The Company has a Customner Grlevance Redressal Mechanism for convanience of eustomers to register their comz/sints and for the Company to moniter and redress them.

21 'm accordance with RBI Master Direction DNBR,PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2015 (Updated upta May 16, 2012), the following are the additional &
format as prescribed vide peragraph L6 6f Mon-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Depes't taking Company [Reserve 8ank] Directians, 2016.

tures required uncer the

Amount eutstanding = T Amount
Liabllities: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Marth 31,2023 March 31, 2022|
1. Loans and advances avuiled by the non banking financial Company [nelushve of Intarest aceruad thereon |
bt rot peid:
{2} Debentures [cther than fal ng witr n the meaning of pubdic deposits]
+ Secured - . 5
*Unsecured - - - .
(3] Deferred Credits - - - -
[ Term Loans - - . -
(a Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowing 185.00 152.00 - -
(e} Cammerelal Paper 381.33 281,66 - -
fl Cther Loans - - B s
15hort Term Laans 105.00 - - -
[} Bank Overdraft 17.51 - - -
fiLine of Credit - . - =
L Total 3 443.66 - -
Ampunt outstanding Amount overdue
Marth 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2472
2, Break-up of Loans and Advences including bills receivables [othor thaty thoss included in [4] below]:
{a) Sacurad 1,147.23 858.23 - -
(b} Unsecuret - - - R
Amount outstanding Amcunt overdue
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2093 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3, Break up of Lenyed Assats and stock on hire and other assets counting towards Asset Finante Company
('AFC'} actvities
i) Lease assets Including lease renta’s under sundry debtors.
(a) Finantial tease - - - - -
iP} Gperating Leass - - - -
Gy Stock on hire induding hire charges under sundry debtors:
fa) Assets on hire - - -
Ib) Repossessed assats - - - |
(] Other [oans counting towards Asset Finante Company activities:
[a}Loans where astets have been repossessed = - - |
[5) Lozrs other than {a) sbove - . -
I Armount cutstanding Amgunt overdus
Maech 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 32, 2022
4. Break-up of tnvestmenty
iturrent Investments:
1 ucted !
(al Equlty - - -
(b} Preference - - -
| Debentures and Bonds - - -
Units of Mutual Funds s 19.27 -
{iv] Government Secusities N - -
{v] Others - . -
2 Unguoted !
(il Shares: (al Eaulty N . N
(b} Preference - - -
Debentures and Bonds o - - -
1] Units of Wutual Funds - - - -
|iv] GovernmentSecurites - - - -
{v] Others - - - -
Long Term Investmeants ;
2 Tucted
{i] Shares {21 Equity - o o
[b} Preference o - O
Debentures and Bonds - - -
1 of Mutual Funds - - -
2 Unquoted «
{ik Shares {a] Eduity 171 i o o

{b! Preference - - - .
[ifk Dabentures and Bonds - - - -
[ Undts of Mutuat Fimds - - - -
|ivh Government Securites - - =
v} Others = B - - N
¥ Includes fnvestments in HSEC InvestDirect Securities [tndia) Private Limited af Rs. 30 which is fu'y provided.

5. REOUp-wis of all Leased Assets, Stock on Hire and Loans and
March 31, 2023 March 3%, 2022
Category Amount (Net of Provisions) Amount [Net of Provislons)
Secured Unsecured Tatal Secured Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties**
(8] Subsidiaries N - - - B o
{b)] Companias
in the same - - - - -
ic) Other related parties N - - E - -
2 rher than related partias 1,147.11 - 1,147.11 858.14 - 858.14

Total 1,147.11 - 1,147.11 058.14 B 858.14
** As per IND AS notified by Company Act, 2013




HSBC InvmatDirect Financial Services (Indin) Limited
Notas to financial statermnents for tha ynar anded March 31, 2023 {Contd.]

40 NBFC disclosures [Cantinued) [Amauntin Rs.crore)

|5. Borrowar growp-wite classification of all Leased Assets, Stock on Hire and Loans and

- Mazch 31, 2023 March 3, 2022
|Category Amcuxt (Nut of Pravislans) Amount [Net of Provisians|
Secured Unsecured Tatad Sacured Unsecured Tatal
1 Related Parties™*
{21 Subsidiaries - - . - -
(b}
Companies in - - . .
{c] Other related partles - - - - - -
2 Other than related parties 114711 - 1,14711 858.14 - B58.14]
1,147.11 - 1,14711 858.14 - B5B.14 i
Act, 2013 ]
6. nvestor group-wi: Fall [eurrent and Tong term} in shares and sacuritles (both quoted and wnguotad] {Plense ses Note 3 below): |
| March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Category MarketValua/  Book Vaiue [Net of Market Value / Sreak Book Valua !
Brnek up ar fair Provisians]  up or fair value or {Natof]
value ar NAY NAV  Provislons)!
1 Feiated Parties** i
[a) Subsidiaries . . - -
(¥) Companies in the same group - - - -
[e} Qther related parties - - - -
2 Gthet than related parties® - N 1927 18.27,
Total .00 0.00 19.27 19.27
® Itrrestment in MF scheme of HSBC groug.
** As per IND AS notified by Comparny Act, 2013
[7. Other informatian March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Puarticulars Amaunt Amount
@ Gross Mon-Performing Assets
[2) Related Parties - .
[b) Qther than Related Parties - o
(] Net Non-Performing Assets

{a) Related Parties 5 N
{b) Othar tha= Refated Parties - -
{im Assets acgulred in satisfaction of debis N -

firved I peint xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2. Provisioning norms sha'l be appicabie as prescribed in Fhese Directions.

1. Adl Accounting Standards and Guidance Motes issued by ICAI are appicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as alto assets aguired in satisfactlon of debt. However,
market value in respect of quoted {nvestments and break up f fair value f NAY in respert of unquoted Investments shall te disclosed irrespactive of whether they are datified as long term or
aarentin (5) above

23. Movepment of Non Parforming Assets (NPas): ™~
Particulars March 31,2023 Mma.n.zoﬁl

(=) Net NPA1 to Net Advances (%)
{h Muvement of NPAs (Gros] - B
| Opening balance - .
[1] Additians durlng the vear - B
(LORLT durlrg the year - N
Clasing balance - -
fe) Mavement of Net KPAS B N
[1) Opening balance

17} Additions during the year -
[ Reductions during the year - .
{iv] Closing balance N -

[ Mavement of provislons for NPAs [exduding provisions on standard assets} - o
(i) Opening balance N =

(i) Provlstons made during the year - .

| [Weite-off} [write-back .
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* Specify item H total for the item Is more than 5 per cant of total related party transactions, Related parties would

o trusts and other badles in which the NBFC can directly e indirectly {thraugh its refated parties) exert control or significant influence

24. The Company kas »a default in comsfance with the requirements of Compandas Act, 2013 However, during the FY 2022-2023, the Company had filed for satisfaction af four charges against the Company with a de'sy. The Misistry =f Corparate Afars MCA)
has condone the delay in satistaction of the said charges with a payment of ENR 1,15,00C for eack charge, amountiag t INR 4,60,000. The Company has filed the Grder of condonation with the MCA for the said satisfaction, however due to migration of MCA ports
frem version 2 to version 3, the sat'sfaction status of charges Is awaited to be reFected on the portal.

25. The Campany =1 r= penalties or stricture Imposed by the Reserve Bank nf Indls,
26. In accordance with RBI Notification No. DNES.CC.PD.No. 365/03.10.01/2013-14 dated Januery 8, 2014, the Company has not lent aga st gald feweiiery during tha year endad 31 March 2023 {Previcus year: Rs. N1

27, Informatian =n instances of fraud:
*ua Instanzes of fraud obiervad [n cusrent and previous year

28 The Company does not have any restructurad attounts.

29 The Campany does not have any Cff-balance sheet SPVs sponsared.

30. During the curzent as well 2 previous year, the Company has not pastponed revenug recogrition on account of panding uncertainties.
31 The Company does not have any overseas jalnt venture f subsiclary.

32. Remuneration of Directors;
Thera Is no peciniary relationship o transactions of the nos-executive directors vis--v/1 the Co

pany, other than direct

sitting fees a1 Siscipsedin note J6

33.Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Finandal Statemants {CFS):
i dh

The Company does nat have any financial required to be prepared under Ind A5 110

34, Covenant Breach
The Company daes nct have any breach in Covenants.

N

35. Divergenca of Loans - Not Agg cabie




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {Contd.)

{Amount in Rs. crore)
41 Pubdic disclosure on liquidity risk

{i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposlts and borrowings)

As at March 31, 2023

% of Total % of Tatal
Sr. No. Number of siginficant counterpartle Aol {
gt unterparties unt{INR Crore) | bosit Uiabilities *
1| Commercial Paper 381 NA 55.2%
2|Loan from holding Company 185 NA 26.8%
3| Borrawing from banks 123 NA 17.7%
As at March 31, 2022
% of Total % of Total
Sr. No. Number of siginficant counterparties Amount (INR Crore!
g P { ) Deposit Liahilities *
1|Cornmercial Paper 282 NA 63.2%
2lloan from halding Company 162 NA 36.4%
3]Borrowing from banks - NA 0.0%
(1) Top 20 large deposits {amount In % crore and % of total deposits) - Not Applicable
{iit) Top 10 borrowings {amount in % crore and % of tota! borrowings)
As at March 31, 2023 AsatMarch31,2022 |
Sr. No. = Type of Borrowing Amount {INR Crore) % of borrowings Amount *of
I | barrowlngs |
1| Commercial paper 381 55.4% | 282 £3.5%
ZELcan from holding Company | 185 27.0% 162 36.6%
3|Borrowing from banks | 123 17.8% | - 0.0%
| Total 689 100% 444 100%
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
% of Total Amount (INR | % of Total
Sr. No, Number of Instument / product Amount (INR Crore) Liabilities * Crore) Liabilities *
L|Commercial paper 381 55.2%5 282 63.2%
2|Loan from holding Company 185 26.8% 162 36.4%
3|Borrowing from banks 123 17.7% - 0.0%
{¥) Stock Ratios:
h 31,
5r. No. Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Asat :;;': '
1|Commescial Paper To Total Public Funds NA NA
2|Commercial Paper To Total Liabilities* 55.2% 63.2%
3|Commercial Paper To Tatal Assets 31.6% 30.1%
4[NCD (original maturity < 1 year) To Total Public Funds NA NA
5|NCD [original maturity < 1 year} To Total Liabilities* NA NA
6| NCD [original maturity < 1 year) To Total Assets NA NA
7|Other short-term labilities To Total Public Funds NA NA
8| Other short-term liabilities To Total Liabilities™ | 18.0% | 0.4%
9|Other short-term liabilities To Total Assets | 10.3% " 0.2%
[vi) Institutlonal set-up for liquldity risk management
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited has Board approved policy for managing its liquidity risk. The Liquidity risk would
be manitored in Asset Liability Management Committee / Risk Management Committee an a monthly basis.
* Total Liabilities is excluding Equity and Reserves.
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